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State of Missouri
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)
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)


vs.

)

No.  01-1304 AC




)

EDWARD C. FANN,

)




)



Respondent.
)

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW


The State Board of Accountancy (Board) filed a complaint on August 1, 2001, seeking this Commission’s determination that the accounting certificate of Edward C. Fann is subject to discipline for pleading guilty to mail fraud.  We held a hearing on December 20, 2001.  The Board was represented by Assistant Attorney General Brian C. Rabineau.  Although notified of the time and place of the hearing, neither Fann nor anyone representing him appeared.

Findings of Fact

1. Fann holds Certificate No. 004720.  That certificate was current and active at all relevant times.

2. On April 20, 2000, Fann pled guilty in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri to one count of mail fraud.  The court sentenced Fann to twelve months and one day imprisonment in the United States Bureau of Prisons, three years of supervised release, a $100 assessment, and restitution in the amount of $619,980.

3. The conduct underlying Fann’s mail fraud conviction included financial improprieties.

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to decide whether Fann’s certificate is subject to discipline.  Section 621.045.1  The Board has the burden to show that Fann has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).


The Board alleges that Fann’s certificate is subject to discipline for pleading guilty to an offense that has fraud and dishonesty as essential elements and that involves moral turpitude, and for a violation of professional trust or confidence.  Section 326.130
 provides: 


2.  The board may cause a complaint to be filed with the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621, RSMo, against any holder of any certificate of registration or authority, permit or license required by this chapter or any person who has failed to renew or has surrendered the person’s certificate of registration or authority, permit or license for any one or any combination of the following causes:

*   *   *


(2) The person has been finally adjudicated and found guilty, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution under the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of any profession licensed or regulated pursuant to this chapter, for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed;

*   *   *


(13) Violation of any professional trust or confidence[.]


Fann pled guilty to mail fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 1341, which provides:

Whoever, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud, or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises . . . for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice or attempting so to do . . . deposits or causes to be deposited any matter or thing whatever to be sent or delivered by any private or commercial interstate carrier . . . shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than five years, or both.


An essential element is one that must be proved for a conviction in every case.  State ex rel. Atkins v. Missouri Bd. of Accountancy, 351 S.W.2d 483, 485 (Mo. App., K.C. 1961).

Fraud is an intentional perversion of truth to induce another to rely on it.  Sofka v. Thal, 662 S.W.2d 502, 506 (Mo. banc 1983); State ex rel. Williams v. Purl, 128 S.W. 196, 201 (Mo. 1910).  It necessarily includes dishonesty, which is a lack of integrity or a disposition to defraud or deceive.  MERRIAM-WEBSTER'S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 333 (10th ed. 1993).  Moral turpitude is:

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”

In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (Mo. banc 1929)).


Fann pled guilty to mail fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 1341.  We conclude that fraud and dishonesty are essential elements of mail fraud under 18 U.S.C. section 1341 and that the offense involves moral turpitude.


Under Supreme Court Rule 59.01, the failure to answer a request for admissions establishes the matters in the request conclusively.  Section 536.073 and our Regulation 1CSR 15-2.420(1) apply that rule to this case.  Fann admitted, through an unanswered request for 

admissions sent to him on November 8, 2001, that the conduct leading to his guilty plea included financial improprieties.  Financial improprieties on the part of a certified professional accountant undermine trust and confidence in the profession.  Therefore, we conclude that Fann has also violated professional trust or confidence.

Summary


Fann’s certificate is subject to discipline for pleading guilty to an offense that has essential elements of fraud and dishonesty and involves moral turpitude under section 326.130.2(2), and for violating professional trust or confidence under section 326.130.2(13).


SO ORDERED on January 8, 2002.


________________________________


KAREN A. WINN


Commissioner

	�All statutory references are to the Revised Statutes of Missouri, 2000.
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